
LOCAL REVIEW BODY
MONDAY, 16 MAY, 2016

A MEETING of the LOCAL REVIEW BODY will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL 

HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS, TD6 0SA on MONDAY, 16 MAY, 2016 at 

10.00 AM

J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,

9 May 2016

BUSINESS

1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. Order of Business. 

3. Declarations of Interest. 

4. Consider request for review of refusal of planning consent in respect 
of erection of dwellinghouse on land north east of The Cottage, Lauder 
Barns, Lauder. 15/01323/FUL 16/00007/RREF 

Copies of the following papers attached:-
(a)  Decision Notice (Pages 1 - 4)

(b)  Notice of Review (Pages 5 - 
152)

(c)  Officer's Report (Pages 153 - 
168)

(d)  Consultations (Pages 169 - 
176)

(e)  Objections and concern (Pages 177 - 
206)

(f)  Support comment (Pages 207 - 
208)

(g)  List of Policies (Pages 209 - 
222)

5. Consider request for review of refusal of planning consent in respect 
of erection of dwellinghouse on land south west of 76 St Andrew St, 
Galashiels.  15/01557/FUL 16/00008/RREF 

Public Document Pack



Copies of the following papers attached:-
(a)  Notice of Review (Pages 223 - 

266)
Including Decision Notice (page 233 )

(b)  Officer's report (Pages 267 - 
270)

(c)  Consultations (Pages 271 - 
276)

(d)  List of policies (Pages 277 - 
286)

6. Consider request for review of refusal of planning consent in respect 
of replacement windows at 5 East High Street, Lauder.  15/01484/FUL 
16/00009/RREF 

Copies of the following papers attached:-
(a)  Decision Notice (Pages 287 - 

288)
(b)  Notice of Review (Pages 289 - 

294)
(c)  Officer's report (Pages 295 - 

298)
(d)  Drawings (Pages 299 - 

308)
(e)  List of policies (Pages 309 - 

314)
7. Any Other Items Previously Circulated 

8. Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent 

NOTES
1. Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’ 

discussions.

2. Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any 
item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the 
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors R. Smith (Chairman), J. Brown (Vice-Chairman), 
M. Ballantyne, J. Campbell, J. A. Fullarton, I. Gillespie, D. Moffat, S. Mountford and B White

Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Walling  01835 826504
email fwalling@scotborders.gov.uk



Page 1

Agenda Item 4a



Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5

Agenda Item 4b



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153

Agenda Item 4c



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169

Agenda Item 4d



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177

Agenda Item 4e



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207

Agenda Item 4f



This page is intentionally left blank



Local Review Reference: 16/00007/RFEF
Planning Application Reference: 15/01323/FUL
Development Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse 
Location: Land North east of The Cottage, Lauder Barns, Lauder
Applicant: Angela Fairbairn

SESPLan 2013:

Policy 5 – Housing Land

The Strategic Development Plan identifies that, for the period from
2009 up to 2024, there is a requirement for sufficient housing land
to be allocated so as to enable 107,545 houses to be built across the
SESplan area, including on land which is currently committed for
housing development. Of that total, the requirement for the period
2009 to 2019 is for 74,835 houses. Supplementary guidance will
be prepared to provide detailed further information for Local
Development Plans as to how much of that requirement should
be met in each of those six areas, both in the period 2009 to 2019
and in the period 2019 to 2024.

The supplementary guidance will be based on an analysis
of opportunities and of infrastructure and environmental capacities
and constraints, and will be undertaken in consultation with the six
constituent planning authorities.

Subject to any justifiable allowance for anticipated house completions
from ‘windfall’ sites, and for demolitions of existing housing stock,
Local Development Plans will allocate sufficient land which
is capable of becoming effective and delivering the scale of the
housing requirements for each period, which will be confirmed in the
supplementary guidance. Where appropriate they will indicate the
phasing and mix of uses to be permitted on any sites to be allocated
for housing development.

Those existing housing sites which are assessed as being constrained,
but also capable of delivering housing completions in the period 2024
to 2032, should be safeguarded for future housing development.

Consolidated Scottish Borders Local Pan 2011

POLICY D2 – HOUSING IN THE COUNTRYSIDE

The Council wishes to promote appropriate rural housing development:

1. in village locations in preference to the open countryside,

2. associated with existing building groups where this does not adversely affect their 
character or that of the surrounding area, and

3. in dispersed communities in the Southern Borders housing market area.

These general principles will be the starting point for the consideration of applications for 
housing in the countryside which will be supplemented by Supplementary Planning Policy 
Guidance on siting, design and interpretation.

Page 209

Agenda Item 4g



POLICY D2 (A) BUILDING GROUPS

Housing of up to a total of 2 additional dwellings or a 30% increase of the building group, 
whichever is the greater, associated with existing building groups may be approved provided 
that:

1. The Council is satisfied that the site is well related to an existing group of at least three 
houses or building(s) currently in residential use or capable of conversion to residential 
use. Where conversion is required to establish a cohesive group of at least three 
houses, no additional housing will be approved until such conversion has been 
implemented,

2. Any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not exceed two 
housing dwellings or a 30% increase in addition to the group during the Plan period.  
No further development above this threshold will be permitted,

3. The cumulative impact of new development on the character of the building group, and 
on the landscape and amenity of the surrounding area will be taken into account when 
determining new applications.  Additional development within a building group will be 
refused if, in conjunction with other developments in the area, it will cause 
unacceptable adverse impacts.

The calculations on building group size are based on the existing number of housing units 
within the group as at the start of the Local Plan period.  This will include those units under 
construction or nearing completion at that point.

POLICY D2 (B) DISPERSED BUILDING GROUPS

In the Southern Housing Market area there are few building groups comprising 3 houses or 
more, and a more dispersed pattern is the norm.  In this area a lower threshold may be 
appropriate, particularly where this would result in tangible community, economic or 
environmental benefits.  In these cases the existence of a sense of place will be the primary 
consideration.

Housing of up to 2 additional dwellings associated with dispersed building groups acting as 
anchor points may be approved provided that:

1. The Council is satisfied that the site lies within a recognised dispersed community that 
functions effectively as an anchor point in the Southern Borders housing market area,

2. Any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not exceed two 
housing dwellings in addition to the group during the Plan period. No further 
development above this threshold will be permitted,

3. The design of housing will be subject to the same considerations as other types of 
housing in the countryside proposals.

POLICY D2 (C) CONVERSIONS

Development that is a change of use of a building to a house may be acceptable provided 
that:

1. the Council is satisfied that the building has architectural or historic merit or is 
physically suited for residential use,

Page 210



2. the building stands substantially intact (normally at least to wallhead height) and the 
existing structure requires no significant demolition.  A structural survey will be required 
where in the opinion of the Council it appears that the building may not be capable of 
conversion, and

3. the conversion and any proposed extension or alteration is in keeping with the scale 
and architectural character of the existing building.

POLICY D2 (D) REBUILDING

The proposed rebuilding or restoration of a house may be acceptable provided that either:

1. the existing building makes a positive contribution to the landscape,

2. the walls of the former residential property stand substantially intact (normally at least 
to wallhead height),

3. no significant demolition is required (a structural survey will be required where it is 
proposed to fully demolish the building, showing that it is incapable of being restored),

4. the restoration/rebuilding and any proposed extension or alteration is in keeping with 
the scale, form and architectural character of the existing or original building,

5. significant alterations to the original character will only be considered where it can be 
demonstrated that these provide environmental benefits such as a more sustainable 
and energy efficient design, or

6. there is evidence of the existence of the building in terms of criteria (a)-(c) immediately 
above, or, alternatively, sufficient documentary evidence exists relating to the siting 
and form of the previous house and this evidence is provided to the satisfaction of the 
Council, and

7. the siting and design of new buildings reflects and respects the historical building 
pattern and the character of the landscape setting, and

8. the extent of new building does not exceed what is to be replaced.

POLICY D2 (E) ECONOMIC REQUIREMENT

Housing with a location essential for business needs may be acceptable if the Council is 
satisfied that:

1. the housing development is a direct operational requirement of an agricultural, 
horticultural, forestry or other enterprise which is itself appropriate to the countryside, 
and it is for a worker predominantly employed in the enterprise and the presence of 
that worker on-site is essential to the efficient operation of the enterprise. Such 
development could include businesses that would cause disturbance or loss of amenity 
if located within an existing settlement, or

2. it is for use of a person last employed in an agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other 
enterprise which is itself appropriate to the countryside, and also employed on the unit 
that is the subject of the application, and the development will release another house 
for continued use by an agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other enterprise which is 
itself appropriate to the countryside, and

Page 211



3. the housing development would help support a business that results in a clear social or 
environmental benefit to the area, including the retention or provision of employment or 
the provision of affordable or local needs housing, and

4. no appropriate site exists within a building group, and

5. there is no suitable existing house or other building capable of conversion for the 
required residential use.

The applicant and, where different, the landowner, may be required to enter into a Section 
75 agreement with the planning authority to tie the proposed house or any existing house to 
the business for which it is justified and to restrict the occupancy of the house to a person 
solely or mainly employed, or last employed, in that specific business, and their dependants.  
A Business Plan, supported by referees or independent business adjudication, may be 
required in some cases.

In ALL instances in considering proposals relative to each of the policy sections above, 
there shall be compliance with the Council’s Supplementary Planning Policy Guidance 
where it meets the terms of this policy and development must not negatively impact on 
landscape and existing communities.  The cumulative effect of applications under this policy 
will be taken into account when determining impact.

POLICY G1 - QUALITY STANDARDS FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability 
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its 
landscape surroundings.  The standards which will apply to all development are that:

1. It is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,  
            neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,
2. it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,
3. it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the         
            amenity or biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation    
            or replacements,
4. it creates developments with a sense of place, designed in sympathy with   
            Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need not exclude appropriate 
            contemporary and/or innovative design,
5. in terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer  
            has demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise 
            the efficient use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable 
            energy and resources and the incorporation of sustainable construction 
            techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance referred to 
            in Appendix D,
6. it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural 
            or screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings 
            and the wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some 
            cases agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are 
            undertaken at an early stage of development and that appropriate 
            arrangements are put in place for long term landscape/open space 
            maintenance, 
7. it provides open space that wherever possible, links to existing open spaces 
            and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation 
            of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a 

Page 212



            developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may 
            be appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,
8. it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the 
            development that will help integration with its surroundings,
9. it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport 
            connections and provision for bus laybys, and new paths and cycleways,    
            linking where possible to the existing path network; Green Travel Plans will 
            be encouraged to support more sustainable travel patterns,
10. it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems where appropriate and 
            their after-care and maintenance,
11. it provides for recycling, re-using and composting waste where appropriate,
12. it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings 
            and, where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,
13. it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which 
            complement the highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an 
            extension or alteration, the existing building,
14. it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,
15. it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in 
            accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Developers may be required to provide design statements, design briefs or landscape plans 
as appropriate.

POLICY G5 – DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS

Where a site is otherwise acceptable but cannot proceed due to deficiencies in infrastructure 
and services or to environmental impacts, any or all of which will be created or exacerbated 
as a result of the development, the Council will require developers to make a full or part 
contribution through S.75 or alternative Legal Agreements towards the cost of addressing 
such deficiencies.  

Each application will be assessed to determine the appropriate level of contribution guided 
by: the requirements identified in the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance on 
developer contributions; planning or development briefs; outputs from community or agency 
liaison; information in settlement profiles; other research and studies such as Transport 
Assessments; the cumulative impact of development in a locality; provisions of Circular 
12/96 in respect of the relationship of the contribution in scale and kind to the development.  
Contributions will be required at the time that they become necessary to ensure timeous 
provision of the improvement in question.  The Council will pursue a pragmatic approach, 
taking account of the importance in securing necessary developments, and exceptional 
development costs that may arise.  Contributions are intended to address matters resulting 
from new proposals, not existing deficiencies.  In general, the Council does not intend to 
require contributions arising from the needs of affordable housing.  Contributions towards 
maintenance will generally be commuted payments covering a 10 year period.

Contributions may be required for one or more of the following:

1.   Treatment of surface or foul waste water in accordance with the Plan’s policies on 
preferred methods (including SUDS maintenance);

2.   Provision of schools, school extensions or associated facilities, all in accordance with 
current educational capacity estimates and schedule of contributions; 

Page 213



3.   Off-site transport infrastructure including new roads or road improvements, Safer 
Routes to School, road safety measures, public car parking, cycle-ways and other 
access routes, subsidy to public transport operators; all in accordance with the 
Council’s standards and the provisions of any Green Travel Plan;

4.   Leisure, sport, recreation, play areas and community facilities, either on-site or off-site;

5.   Landscape, open space, trees and woodlands, including costs of future management 
and maintenance;

6.   Protection, enhancement and promotion of environmental assets either on-site or off-
site, having regard to the Local Biodiversity Action Plan and the Council’s 
Supplementary Planning Guidance on Biodiversity, including compensation for any 
losses and/or alternative provision;

7.   Provision of other facilities and equipment for the satisfactory completion of the 
development that may include: measures to minimise the risk of crime; provision for the 
storage, collection and recycling of waste, including communal facilities; and provision 
of street furniture.

POLICY H2 – PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or 
proposed residential areas will not be permitted.  To protect the amenity and character of 
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

1. The principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space 
            that would be lost; and

2. The details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a  

residential area,
(ii) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and  

surrounding properties particularly in terms of overlooking and loss of privacy.  
These considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or 
‘backland’ development,

            (iii) the generation of traffic or noise,
            (iv) the level of visual impact.

POLICY G6 – DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS RELATED TO RAILWAY 
REINSTATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of the Waverley Railway (Scotland) Act 2006, the Council 
will seek developer contributions towards the cost of providing the Waverley rail link from 
any developments that may be considered to benefit from, or be enhanced by, the re-
instatement of the rail link.  The postcodes affected and level of contribution sought will be in 
accordance with the Council decision of 5 October 2004 or from any subsequent Council 
decision during the Local Plan period. 

POLICY INF6 – SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE 

Page 214



1. Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield 
sites, must comply with current best practice on Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems 
(SUDS) to the satisfaction of the Council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency, 
Scottish Natural Heritage and other interested parties.  

2. Development will be refused unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable 
manner that avoids flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of 
watercourses. 

3. A drainage strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment 
and flood attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any 
necessary features.

POLICY INF5 – WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS

The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new 
development will be, in order of priority:

1. direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or 
failing that:

2. negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing 
sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or 
failing that:

3. agreement with Scottish Water to provide permanent or temporary alternatives to sewer 
connection including the possibility of stand alone treatment plants until sewer capacity 
becomes available, or, failing that:

4. for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly 
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage providing it can be demonstrated that this 
can be delivered without any negative impacts to public health, the environment or the 
quality of watercourses or groundwater.

In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private septic 
tank will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the conditions in 
criterion 4 can be satisfied,

Development will be refused if:
5. it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment 

infrastructure within settlements,
6. it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to 

provide for new infrastructure.

POLICY INF4 – PARKING PROVISIONS AND STANDARDS

Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with the 
Council’s published adopted standards, or any subsequent standards which may 
subsequently be adopted by the Council (see Appendix D).

Relaxation of standards will be considered where the Council determines that a relaxation is 
required owing to the nature of the development and/or positive amenity gains can be 
demonstrated that do not compromise road safety.

Page 215



In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the 
desirability of additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to promote the use 
of sustainable travel modes.

POLICY NE4 – TREES, WOODLANDS AND HEDGEROWS

The Council supports the maintenance and management of trees, woodlands, including 
ancient woodlands and ancient woodland pastures, and hedgerows, (hereafter referred to as 
the ‘woodland resource’) and requires developers to incorporate, wherever feasible, the 
existing woodland resource into their schemes.

1.   Development that would cause the loss of, or serious damage to the woodland 
resource, will be refused unless the public benefits of the development at the local 
level clearly outweigh the loss of landscape, ecological, recreational, historical or 
shelter value.  Decision making will be informed by the Scottish Borders Woodland 
Strategy, expert advice from external agencies, the existing condition of the woodland 
resource and BS5837:  Trees in Relation to Construction;

2.   The siting and design of the development should aim to minimise adverse impacts on 
the biodiversity value of the woodland resource, including its environmental quality, 
ecological status and viability;

3.   Where there is an unavoidable loss of the woodland resource, appropriate replacement 
planting will normally be a condition of planning permission.  In some locations 
planning agreements will be sought to enhance the woodland resource; 

Development proposals should demonstrate how the protection of the woodland resource 
will be carried out during construction, adopting British Standard 5837.

Proposed Local Development Plan 2016 (incorporating Reporter’s changes accepted 
by Scottish Borders Council)

Policy HD2: Housing in the Countryside

The Council wishes to promote appropriate rural housing development:

a) in village locations in preference to the open countryside where permission    
will only be granted in special circumstances on appropriate sites,
b) associated with existing building groups where this does not adversely affect their 
character or that of the surrounding area, and
c) in dispersed communities in the Southern Borders housing market area.

These general principles in addition to the requirement for suitable roads access will be the 
starting point for the consideration of applications for housing in the countryside, which will 
be supplemented by Supplementary Planning Guidance / Supplementary Guidance on New 
Housing in the Borders Countryside and on Placemaking and Design.

(A) Building Groups
Housing of up to a total of 2 additional dwellings or a 30% increase of the building group, 
whichever is the greater, associated with existing building groups may be approved provided 
that:

Page 216



a) the Council is satisfied that the site is well related to an existing group of at least 
three houses or building(s) currently in residential use or capable of conversion to residential 
use. Where conversion is required to establish a cohesive group of at least three houses, no 
additional housing will be approved until such conversion has been implemented,
b) the cumulative impact of new development on the character of the building group, 
and on the landscape and amenity of the surrounding area will be taken into account when 
determining new applications.  Additional development within a building group will be refused 
if, in conjunction with other developments in the area, it will cause unacceptable adverse 
impacts,
c) any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not exceed 
two housing dwellings or a 30% increase in addition to the group during the Plan period. No 
further development above this threshold will be permitted.  

In addition, where a proposal for new development is to be supported, the proposal should 
be appropriate in scale, siting, design, access, and materials, and should be sympathetic to 
the character of the group.

The calculations on building group size are based on the existing number of housing units 
within the group as at the start of the Local Development Plan period.  This will include those 
units under construction or nearing completion at that point.

(B) Dispersed Buildings Groups
In the Southern Housing Market area there are few building groups comprising 3 houses or 
more, and a more dispersed pattern is the norm.  In this area a lower threshold may be 
appropriate, particularly where this would result in tangible community, economic or 
environmental benefits. In these cases the existence of a sense of place will be the primary 
consideration.

Housing of up to 2 additional dwellings associated with dispersed building groups that meet 
the above criteria may be approved provided that:

a) the Council is satisfied that the site lies within a recognised dispersed community in 
the Southern Borders housing market area,
b) any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not exceed 
two housing dwellings in addition to the group during the Plan period.  No further 
development above this threshold will be permitted,
c) the design of housing will be subject to the same considerations as other types of 
housing in the countryside proposals.

(C) Conversions of Buildings to a House
Development that is a change of use of a building to a house may be acceptable provided 
that:
a) the Council is satisfied that the building has architectural or historic merit, is capable 
of conversion and is physically suited for residential use,
b) the building stands substantially intact (normally at least to wallhead height) and the 
existing structure requires no significant demolition.  A structural survey will be required 
where in the opinion of the Council it appears that the building may not be capable of 
conversion, and 
c) the conversion and any proposed extension or alteration is in keeping with the scale 
and architectural character of the existing building.

(D) Restoration of Houses

Page 217



The restoration of a house may also be acceptable provided that the walls of the former 
residential property stand substantially intact (normally at least to wallhead height). In 
addition:

a) the siting and design reflects and respects the historical building pattern and the 
character of the landscape setting,
b) any proposed extension or alteration should be in keeping with the scale, form and 
architectural character of the existing or original building, and
c) significant alterations to the original character will only be considered where it can be 
demonstrated that these provide environmental benefits such as a positive contribution to 
the landscape and/or a more sustainable and energy efficient design.

(E) Replacement Dwellings
The proposed replacement of an existing house may be acceptable provided that:
a) the siting and design of the new building reflects and respects the historical building 
pattern and the character of the landscape setting,
b) the proposal is in keeping  with the existing/original building in terms of its scales, 
extent, form and architectural character, 
c) significant alterations to the original character of the house will only be considered 
where it can be demonstrated that these provide environmental benefits such as a positive 
contribution to the landscape and /or a more sustainable and energy efficient design.

(F) Economic Requirement
Housing with a location essential for business needs may be acceptable if the Council is 
satisfied that:

a) the housing development is a direct operational requirement of an agricultural, 
horticultural, forestry or other enterprise which is itself appropriate to the countryside, and it 
is for a worker predominantly employed in the enterprise and the presence of that worker on-
site is essential to the efficient operation of the enterprise. Such development could include 
businesses that would cause disturbance or loss of amenity if located within an existing 
settlement, or
b) it is for use of a person last employed in an agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other 
enterprise which is itself appropriate to the countryside, and also employed on the unit that is 
the subject of the application, and the development will release another house for continued 
use by an agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other enterprise which is itself appropriate to 
the countryside, and 
c) the housing development would help support a business that results in a clear social 
or environmental benefit to the area, including the retention or provision of employment or 
the provision of affordable or local needs housing, and
d) no appropriate site exists within a building group, and
e) there is no suitable existing house or other building capable of conversion for the 
required residential use.

In ALL instances in considering proposals relative to each of the policy sections above, there 
shall be compliance with the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance where it meets the 
terms of this policy and development must not negatively impact on landscape and existing 
communities.  The cumulative effect of applications under this policy will be taken into 
account when determining impact.

Policy PMD2: Quality Standards

Page 218



All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability 
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its 
landscape surroundings.  The standards which will apply to all development are that:

Sustainability 
a) In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has 
demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient use of 
energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources such as District 
Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction techniques in 
accordance with supplementary planning guidance.  Planning applications must demonstrate 
that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction target has been met, with at least half of 
this target met through the use of low or zero carbon technology,
b) it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,
c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall provision of 
Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and maintenance,
d) it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,
e) it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and 
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and, 
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,
f) it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or screen 
planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the wider 
environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases agreements will be 
required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an early stage of development 
and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for long term landscape/open space 
maintenance,
g) it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces.

Placemaking & Design
h) It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the 
context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need not 
exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,
i) it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and, where an 
extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,
j) it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the 
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the 
existing building,
k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area, neighbouring 
uses, and neighbouring built form,
l) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,
m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the 
development that will help integration with its surroundings,
n) it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in accordance 
with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Accessibility 
o) Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street 
patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to 
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths,
p) it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,
q) it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the site 
access,
r) it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport connections 
and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where possible to the existing 
path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support more sustainable travel patterns,

Page 219



s) it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used for 
waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity
t) It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open spaces 
and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation of an up-to-
date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a developer contribution to 
wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be appropriate, supported by appropriate 
arrangements for maintenance,
u) it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or 
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and 
landscape plans as appropriate.

Policy HD3 – Protection of Residential Amenity

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or 
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of 
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that 
would be lost; and
b) the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area,
(ii) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties 
particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These 
considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’ development, 
(iii) the generation of traffic or noise,
(iv) the level of visual impact.

Policy IS2: Developer Contributions

Where a site is otherwise acceptable in terms of planning policy, but cannot proceed due to 
deficiencies in infrastructure and services or to environmental impacts, any or all of which 
will be created or exacerbated as a result of the development, the Council will require 
developers to make a full or partial contribution towards the cost of addressing such 
deficiencies.  

Contributions may be required for one or more of the following:

a) treatment of surface or foul waste water in accordance with the Plan’s policies on 
preferred methods (including SUDS maintenance);
b) provision of schools, school extensions or associated facilities, all in accordance with 
current educational capacity estimates and schedule of contributions; 
c) off-site transport infrastructure including new roads or road improvements, Safer 
Routes to School, road safety measures, public car parking, cycle-ways, bridges and 
associated studies and other access routes, subsidy to public transport operators; all in 
accordance with the relevant standards and the provisions of any Travel Plan;
d) leisure, sport, recreation, play areas and community facilities, either on-site or off-
site;
e) landscape, open space, allotment provision, trees and woodlands, including costs of 
future management and maintenance;

Page 220



f) protection, enhancement and promotion of environmental assets either on-site or off-
site, having regard to the Local Biodiversity Action Plan and the Council’s Supplementary 
Planning Guidance on Biodiversity, including compensation for any losses and/or alternative 
provision;
g) provision of other facilities and equipment for the satisfactory completion of the 
development that may include: measures to minimise the risk of crime; provision for the 
storage, collection and recycling of waste, including communal facilities; provision of street 
furniture and digital connectivity with associated infrastructure.

Wherever possible, any requirement to provide developer contributions will be secured by 
planning condition.  Where a legal agreement is necessary, the preference for using an 
agreement under other legislation, for example the 1973 Local Government (Scotland) Act 
and the 1984 Roads (Scotland) Act will be considered.  A planning obligation will only be 
necessary where successors in title need to be bound by its terms. Where appropriate, the 
council will consider the economic viability of a proposed development, including possible 
payment options, such as staged or phased payments.

Policy IS3 - Developer Contributions related to the Borders Railway

In accordance with the provisions of the Waverley Railway (Scotland) Act 2006, the Council 
will seek developer contributions towards the cost of providing the Borders railway from any 
developments that may be considered to benefit from, or be enhanced by, the re-instatement 
of the rail link.   

Policy IS7 – Parking Provision and Standards

Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with 
approved standards.

Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of 
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not 
compromise road safety.

In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the 
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to 
promote the use of sustainable travel modes.

Policy IS9 - Waste Water Treatment Standards and  Sustainable Urban Drainage

Waste Water Treatment Standards
The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new 
development will be, in order of priority:
a) direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or 
failing that:
b) negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing 
sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or failing 
that:
c). agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide permanent or 
temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the possibility of stand alone treatment 
plants until sewer capacity becomes available, or, failing that:
d) for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly 
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be acceptable, providing it can 

Page 221



be demonstrated that this can be delivered without any negative impacts to public health, the 
environment or the quality of watercourses or groundwater.

In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private sewage 
treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the 
conditions in criteria d above can be satisfied,

Development will be refused if:
a) it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment 
infrastructure within settlements,
b) it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to 
provide for new infrastructure.

Sustainable Urban Drainage
Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield sites, 
must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban drainage systems to the 
satisfaction of the council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency (where required), 
Scottish Natural Heritage and other interested parties where required.  Development will be 
refused unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids 
flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses.  A drainage 
strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and flood 
attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any necessary features.

Policy EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows

The Council will refuse development that would cause the loss of or serious damage to the 
woodland resource unless the public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the loss of 
landscape, ecological, recreational, historical, or shelter value. 

Any development that may impact on the woodland resource should:

a) aim to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity value of the woodland resource, 
including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and

b) where there is an unavoidable loss of the woodland resource, ensure appropriate 
replacement planting, where possible, within the area of the Scottish Borders; and 

c) adhere to any planning agreement sought to enhance the woodland resource

Other Material Considerations
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on New Housing in the Borders Countryside 2008
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking and Design 2010
Scottish Planning Policy

Page 222



Page 223

Agenda Item 5a



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267

Agenda Item 5b



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271

Agenda Item 5c



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Local Review Reference: 16/00008/RFEF
Planning Application Reference: 15/01557/FUL
Development Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse 
Location: Builder’s Yard, Land South West of 76 St Andrew Street, Galashiels
Applicant: Book Developments

SESPLan 2013:
None applicable

Consolidated Scottish Borders Local Pan 2011

POLICY G1 - QUALITY STANDARDS FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability 
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its 
landscape surroundings.  The standards which will apply to all development are that:

1. It is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,  
            neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,
2. it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,
3. it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the         
            amenity or biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation    
            or replacements,
4. it creates developments with a sense of place, designed in sympathy with   
            Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need not exclude appropriate 
            contemporary and/or innovative design,
5. in terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer  
            has demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise 
            the efficient use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable 
            energy and resources and the incorporation of sustainable construction 
            techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance referred to 
            in Appendix D,
6. it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural 
            or screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings 
            and the wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some 
            cases agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are 
            undertaken at an early stage of development and that appropriate 
            arrangements are put in place for long term landscape/open space 
            maintenance, 
7. it provides open space that wherever possible, links to existing open spaces 
            and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation 
            of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a 
            developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may 
            be appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,
8. it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the 
            development that will help integration with its surroundings,
9. it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport 
            connections and provision for bus laybys, and new paths and cycleways,    
            linking where possible to the existing path network; Green Travel Plans will 
            be encouraged to support more sustainable travel patterns,
10. it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems where appropriate and 
            their after-care and maintenance,
11. it provides for recycling, re-using and composting waste where appropriate,
12. it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings 
            and, where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,

Page 277

Agenda Item 5d



13. it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which 
            complement the highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an 
            extension or alteration, the existing building,
14. it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,
15. it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in 
            accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Developers may be required to provide design statements, design briefs or landscape plans 
as appropriate.

POLICY G2 - CONTAMINATED LAND

Where development is proposed on land that is contaminated, or suspected of 
contamination, the developer will be required to:
1. Carry out any necessary site investigations and assessments to identify any actual or 

possible significant risk to public health or safety, or to the environment, including 
possible pollution of controlled waters that arise from the proposals;

2. consult with relevant agencies as part of their assessment, in particular the Scottish 
Environment Protection Agency in relation to impact on controlled waters and Scottish 
Natural Heritage and other relevant agencies in relation to other environmental risks; 
and

3. undertake effective remedial action to ensure the site is made suitable for any new use, 
in scale with planning permission given for that particular use.

POLICY G5 – DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS

Where a site is otherwise acceptable but cannot proceed due to deficiencies in infrastructure 
and services or to environmental impacts, any or all of which will be created or exacerbated 
as a result of the development, the Council will require developers to make a full or part 
contribution through S.75 or alternative Legal Agreements towards the cost of addressing 
such deficiencies.  

Each application will be assessed to determine the appropriate level of contribution guided 
by: the requirements identified in the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance on 
developer contributions; planning or development briefs; outputs from community or agency 
liaison; information in settlement profiles; other research and studies such as Transport 
Assessments; the cumulative impact of development in a locality; provisions of Circular 
12/96 in respect of the relationship of the contribution in scale and kind to the development.  
Contributions will be required at the time that they become necessary to ensure timeous 
provision of the improvement in question.  The Council will pursue a pragmatic approach, 
taking account of the importance in securing necessary developments, and exceptional 
development costs that may arise.  Contributions are intended to address matters resulting 
from new proposals, not existing deficiencies.  In general, the Council does not intend to 
require contributions arising from the needs of affordable housing.  Contributions towards 
maintenance will generally be commuted payments covering a 10 year period.

Contributions may be required for one or more of the following:
1.   Treatment of surface or foul waste water in accordance with the Plan’s policies on 

preferred methods (including SUDS maintenance);

Page 278



2.   Provision of schools, school extensions or associated facilities, all in accordance with 
current educational capacity estimates and schedule of contributions; 

3.   Off-site transport infrastructure including new roads or road improvements, Safer 
Routes to School, road safety measures, public car parking, cycle-ways and other 
access routes, subsidy to public transport operators; all in accordance with the 
Council’s standards and the provisions of any Green Travel Plan;

4.   Leisure, sport, recreation, play areas and community facilities, either on-site or off-site;

5.   Landscape, open space, trees and woodlands, including costs of future management 
and maintenance;

6.   Protection, enhancement and promotion of environmental assets either on-site or off-
site, having regard to the Local Biodiversity Action Plan and the Council’s 
Supplementary Planning Guidance on Biodiversity, including compensation for any 
losses and/or alternative provision;

7.   Provision of other facilities and equipment for the satisfactory completion of the 
development that may include: measures to minimise the risk of crime; provision for the 
storage, collection and recycling of waste, including communal facilities; and provision 
of street furniture.

POLICY G6 – DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS RELATED TO RAILWAY 
REINSTATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of the Waverley Railway (Scotland) Act 2006, the Council 
will seek developer contributions towards the cost of providing the Waverley rail link from 
any developments that may be considered to benefit from, or be enhanced by, the re-
instatement of the rail link.  The postcodes affected and level of contribution sought will be in 
accordance with the Council decision of 5 October 2004 or from any subsequent Council 
decision during the Local Plan period. 

POLICY G7 – INFILL DEVELOPMENT

Within Development Boundaries, as shown on Proposals Maps, development on non-
allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of buildings, will be approved if:

1. in the case of a gap site, it can be justified under Policies BE6 (Protection of Open 
Space), Policy NE3 (Local Biodiversity) and Policy Inf11 (Developments that Generate 
Travel Demand);

2. in the case of employment land the proposed new use can be justified under Policy ED1 
to prevent the loss of employment land with prospects of future use;

3. in the case of garden ground or backland sites, it can be justified under Policy H2 to 
safeguard the amenity of residential areas;

In all cases, the following criteria will apply to proposed infill development:-

i) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and

Page 279



ii) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and

iii) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the social 
and economic infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or ‘town and 
village cramming’; and

iv) it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density of its surroundings; and

v) adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water and 
drainage and schools capacity; and

vi) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining 
properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking.

All applications will be considered against the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance 
on Placemaking and Design.

POLICY H2 – PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or 
proposed residential areas will not be permitted.  To protect the amenity and character of 
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

1    The principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space 
            that would be lost; and

2    The details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a  

residential area,
(ii) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and  

surrounding properties particularly in terms of overlooking and loss of privacy.  
These considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or 
‘backland’ development,

            (iii) the generation of traffic or noise,
            (iv) the level of visual impact.

POLICY NE3 - LOCAL BIODIVERSITY

1. The Council will seek to safeguard the integrity of habitats both within and outwith 
settlements which are of importance for the maintenance and enhancement of local 
biodiversity.  The rationale and detail for this is set out in the Supplementary Planning 
Guidance for Biodiversity.

2. Where development is proposed on a site for which there is evidence to suggest that a 
habitat or species of importance exists, the developer may be required, at their own 
expense, to undertake a survey of the site’s natural environment.  Major developments, 
as defined by the categories of development identified in the Council’s biannual 
Scottish Government Planning Application Returns, may require an Ecological Impact 
Assessment.

3. Development that could impact on local biodiversity through impacts on habitats and 
species should 
i) Be sited and designed to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity of the site, 

including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability, 
ii) Aim to avoid the fragmentation or isolation of habitats,  

Page 280



iii) Aim to enhance the biodiversity value of the site through the creation or 
restoration of habitats and wildlife corridors and provision for their long term 
management and maintenance.

4. Development that would have an unacceptable adverse effect on habitats or species of 
Conservation Concern as identified in the regional listings in the Local Biodiversity 
Action Plan (LBAP) will be refused unless it can be demonstrated that the public 
benefits of the development clearly outweigh the value of the habitat for biodiversity 
conservation.

5. Where the reasons in favour of development clearly outweigh the desirability of retaining 
particular habitat features, mitigation measures aimed at ensuring no net loss of LBAP 
habitats will be sought, including the creation of new habitats or the enhancement of 
existing habitats, in accordance with Policy G5 Developer Contributions and the 
associated Supplementary Planning Guidance.

POLICY INF6 – SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE 

1. Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield 
sites, must comply with current best practice on Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems 
(SUDS) to the satisfaction of the Council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency, 
Scottish Natural Heritage and other interested parties.  

2. Development will be refused unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable 
manner that avoids flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of 
watercourses. 

3. A drainage strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment 
and flood attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any 
necessary features.

POLICY INF5 – WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS

The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new 
development will be, in order of priority:

1. direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or 
failing that:

2. negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing 
sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or 
failing that:

3. agreement with Scottish Water to provide permanent or temporary alternatives to sewer 
connection including the possibility of stand alone treatment plants until sewer capacity 
becomes available, or, failing that:

4. for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly 
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage providing it can be demonstrated that this 
can be delivered without any negative impacts to public health, the environment or the 
quality of watercourses or groundwater.

In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private septic 
tank will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the conditions in 
criterion 4 can be satisfied,

Development will be refused if:

Page 281



5. it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment 
infrastructure within settlements,

6. it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to 
provide for new infrastructure.

POLICY INF4 – PARKING PROVISIONS AND STANDARDS

Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with the 
Council’s published adopted standards, or any subsequent standards which may 
subsequently be adopted by the Council (see Appendix D).

Relaxation of standards will be considered where the Council determines that a relaxation is 
required owing to the nature of the development and/or positive amenity gains can be 
demonstrated that do not compromise road safety.

In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the 
desirability of additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to promote the use 
of sustainable travel modes.

Proposed Local Development Plan 2016 (incorporating Reporter’s changes accepted 
by Scottish Borders Council)

Policy PMD2: Quality Standards

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability 
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its 
landscape surroundings.  The standards which will apply to all development are that:

Sustainability 
a) In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has 
demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient use of 
energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources such as District 
Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction techniques in 
accordance with supplementary planning guidance.  Planning applications must demonstrate 
that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction target has been met, with at least half of 
this target met through the use of low or zero carbon technology,
b) it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,
c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall provision of 
Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and maintenance,
d) it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,
e) it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and 
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and, 
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,
f) it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or screen 
planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the wider 
environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases agreements will be 
required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an early stage of development 
and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for long term landscape/open space 
maintenance,
g) it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces.

Placemaking & Design

Page 282



h) It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the 
context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need not 
exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,
i) it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and, where an 
extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,
j) it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the 
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the 
existing building,
k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area, neighbouring 
uses, and neighbouring built form,
l) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,
m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the 
development that will help integration with its surroundings,
n) it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in accordance 
with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Accessibility 
o) Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street 
patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to 
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths,
p) it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,
q) it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the site 
access,
r) it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport connections 
and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where possible to the existing 
path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support more sustainable travel patterns,
s) it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used for 
waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity
t) It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open spaces 
and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation of an up-to-
date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a developer contribution to 
wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be appropriate, supported by appropriate 
arrangements for maintenance,
u) it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or 
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and 
landscape plans as appropriate.

Policy PMD5: Infill Development

Development on non-allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of buildings within 
Development Boundaries as shown on proposal maps will be approved where the following 
criteria are satisfied:

a) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and
b) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and
c) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the 
social and economic infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or ‘town and 
village cramming’; and
d) it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its 
surroundings; and

Page 283



e) adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water 
and drainage and schools capacity; and
f) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining 
properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking.

All applications will be considered against the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance 
on Placemaking and Design. Developers are required to provide design statements as 
appropriate.

Policy EP3: Local Biodiversity

Development that would have an unacceptable adverse effect on Borders Notable Species 
and Habitats of Conservation Concern will be refused unless it can be demonstrated that the 
public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the value of the habitat for biodiversity 
conservation.

Any development that could impact on local biodiversity through impacts on habitats and 
species should:

a) aim to avoid fragmentation or isolation of habitats; and
b) be sited and designed to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity of the site, 

including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and
c) compensate to ensure no net loss of biodiversity through use of biodiversity offsets 

as appropriate; and
d) aim to enhance the biodiversity value of the site, through use of an ecosystems 

approach, with the aim of creation or restoration of habitats and wildlife corridors and 
provision for their long-term management and maintenance

Policy IS13: Contaminated Land

Where development is proposed on land that is contaminated, suspected of contamination, 
or unstable the developer will be required to:
(a) carry out, in full consultation with, and to the satisfaction of Scottish Borders Council, 
appropriate phased site investigations and risk assessments; and
(b) where necessary, and to the satisfaction of Scottish Borders Council design, implement, 
and validate appropriate remedial or mitigation measures to render the site suitable for its 
proposed use.

Policy HD3 – Protection of Residential Amenity

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or 
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of 
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that 
would be lost; and
b) the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area,
(ii) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties 
particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These 
considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’ development, 
(iii) the generation of traffic or noise,

Page 284



(iv) the level of visual impact.

Policy IS2: Developer Contributions

Where a site is otherwise acceptable in terms of planning policy, but cannot proceed due to 
deficiencies in infrastructure and services or to environmental impacts, any or all of which 
will be created or exacerbated as a result of the development, the Council will require 
developers to make a full or partial contribution towards the cost of addressing such 
deficiencies.  

Contributions may be required for one or more of the following:

a) treatment of surface or foul waste water in accordance with the Plan’s policies on 
preferred methods (including SUDS maintenance);
b) provision of schools, school extensions or associated facilities, all in accordance with 
current educational capacity estimates and schedule of contributions; 
c) off-site transport infrastructure including new roads or road improvements, Safer 
Routes to School, road safety measures, public car parking, cycle-ways, bridges and 
associated studies and other access routes, subsidy to public transport operators; all in 
accordance with the relevant standards and the provisions of any Travel Plan;
d) leisure, sport, recreation, play areas and community facilities, either on-site or off-
site;
e) landscape, open space, allotment provision, trees and woodlands, including costs of 
future management and maintenance;
f) protection, enhancement and promotion of environmental assets either on-site or off-
site, having regard to the Local Biodiversity Action Plan and the Council’s Supplementary 
Planning Guidance on Biodiversity, including compensation for any losses and/or alternative 
provision;
g) provision of other facilities and equipment for the satisfactory completion of the 
development that may include: measures to minimise the risk of crime; provision for the 
storage, collection and recycling of waste, including communal facilities; provision of street 
furniture and digital connectivity with associated infrastructure.

Wherever possible, any requirement to provide developer contributions will be secured by 
planning condition.  Where a legal agreement is necessary, the preference for using an 
agreement under other legislation, for example the 1973 Local Government (Scotland) Act 
and the 1984 Roads (Scotland) Act will be considered.  A planning obligation will only be 
necessary where successors in title need to be bound by its terms. Where appropriate, the 
council will consider the economic viability of a proposed development, including possible 
payment options, such as staged or phased payments.

Policy IS3 - Developer Contributions related to the Borders Railway

In accordance with the provisions of the Waverley Railway (Scotland) Act 2006, the Council 
will seek developer contributions towards the cost of providing the Borders railway from any 
developments that may be considered to benefit from, or be enhanced by, the re-instatement 
of the rail link.

Policy IS7 – Parking Provision and Standards

Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with 
approved standards.

Page 285



Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of 
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not 
compromise road safety.

In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the 
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to 
promote the use of sustainable travel modes.

Policy IS9 - Waste Water Treatment Standards and  Sustainable Urban Drainage

Waste Water Treatment Standards
The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new 
development will be, in order of priority:
a) direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or 
failing that:
b) negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing 
sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or failing 
that:
c). agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide permanent or 
temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the possibility of stand alone treatment 
plants until sewer capacity becomes available, or, failing that:
d) for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly 
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be acceptable, providing it can 
be demonstrated that this can be delivered without any negative impacts to public health, the 
environment or the quality of watercourses or groundwater.

In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private sewage 
treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the 
conditions in criteria d above can be satisfied,

Development will be refused if:
a) it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment 
infrastructure within settlements,
b) it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to 
provide for new infrastructure.

Sustainable Urban Drainage
Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield sites, 
must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban drainage systems to the 
satisfaction of the council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency (where required), 
Scottish Natural Heritage and other interested parties where required.  Development will be 
refused unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids 
flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses.  A drainage 
strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and flood 
attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any necessary features.

Other Material Considerations
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Householder Development 2006
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Developer Contributions 2015
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking and Design 2010
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Biodiversity 2005
Scottish Planning Policy

Page 286



Page 287

Agenda Item 6a



Page 288



Page 289

Agenda Item 6b



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295

Agenda Item 6c



Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299

Agenda Item 6d



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



Page 303



Page 304



Page 305



Page 306



Page 307



Page 308



Local Review Reference: 16/00009/RFEF
Planning Application Reference: 15/01484/FUL
Development Proposal: Replacement Windows
Location: 5 East High Street, Lauder
Applicant: Mrs M Dick

SESPLan 2013:

None applicable

Consolidated Scottish Borders Local Pan 2011

POLICY G1 - QUALITY STANDARDS FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability 
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its 
landscape surroundings.  The standards which will apply to all development are that:

1. It is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,  
            neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,
2. it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,
3. it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the         
            amenity or biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation    
            or replacements,
4. it creates developments with a sense of place, designed in sympathy with   
            Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need not exclude appropriate 
            contemporary and/or innovative design,
5. in terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer  
            has demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise 
            the efficient use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable 
            energy and resources and the incorporation of sustainable construction 
            techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance referred to 
            in Appendix D,
6. it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural 
            or screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings 
            and the wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some 
            cases agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are 
            undertaken at an early stage of development and that appropriate 
            arrangements are put in place for long term landscape/open space 
            maintenance, 
7. it provides open space that wherever possible, links to existing open spaces 
            and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation 
            of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a 
            developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may 
            be appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,
8. it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the 
            development that will help integration with its surroundings,
9. it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport 
            connections and provision for bus laybys, and new paths and cycleways,    
            linking where possible to the existing path network; Green Travel Plans will 
            be encouraged to support more sustainable travel patterns,
10. it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems where appropriate and 
            their after-care and maintenance,
11. it provides for recycling, re-using and composting waste where appropriate,

Page 309

Agenda Item 6e



12. it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings 
            and, where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,
13. it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which 
            complement the highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an 
            extension or alteration, the existing building,
14. it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,
15. it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in 
            accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Developers may be required to provide design statements, design briefs or landscape plans 
as appropriate.

POLICY H2 – PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or 
proposed residential areas will not be permitted.  To protect the amenity and character of 
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

1. The principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space 
            that would be lost; and

2. The details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a  

residential area,
(ii) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and  

surrounding properties particularly in terms of overlooking and loss of privacy.  
These considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or 
‘backland’ development,

            (iii) the generation of traffic or noise,
            (iv) the level of visual impact.

POLICY BE4 – CONSERVATION AREAS

1.   Development within or adjacent to a Conservation Area that would have an 
unacceptable adverse impact on its character and appearance will be refused.

2.   All new development must be located and designed to preserve or enhance the special 
architectural or historic character of the Conservation Area.  This should accord with 
the scale, proportions, alignment, density, materials, and boundary treatment of nearby 
buildings, open spaces, vistas, gardens and landscapes.

3. Conservation Area consent, which is required for the demolition of an unlisted building 
within a Conservation Area, will only be considered in the context of appropriate 
proposals for redevelopment and will only be permitted where:
i) the building is incapable of reasonably beneficial use by virtue of its location, physical 
form or state of disrepair, and
ii)the structural condition of the building is such that it cannot be adapted to 
accommodate alterations or extensions without material loss to its character, and
iii) the proposal will preserve or enhance the Conservation area, either individually 
or as part of the  townscape.
In cases i) to iii) above, demolition will not be permitted to proceed until acceptable 
alternative treatment of the site has been approved and a contract for the replacement 
building or for an alternative means of treating the cleared site has been agreed.

4. Full consideration will be given to the guidance given in the Scottish Historic 
Environment Policy  (SHEP) in the assessment of any application relating to 
development within a Conservation Area.

5.      The Council may require applications for full, as opposed to outline, consent.  In  

Page 310



         instances where outline applications are submitted, the Council will require a  
         ‘Design Statement’ to be submitted at the same time, which should explain and 
         illustrate the design principles and design concepts of the proposals.  Design 
         Statements will also be required for any applications for major alterations or 
         extensions, or for demolition and replacement.

Proposed Local Development Plan 2016 (incorporating Reporter’s changes accepted 
by Scottish Borders Council)

Policy PMD2: Quality Standards

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability 
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its 
landscape surroundings.  The standards which will apply to all development are that:

Sustainability 
a) In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has 
demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient use of 
energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources such as District 
Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction techniques in 
accordance with supplementary planning guidance.  Planning applications must demonstrate 
that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction target has been met, with at least half of 
this target met through the use of low or zero carbon technology,
b) it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,
c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall provision of 
Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and maintenance,
d) it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,
e) it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and 
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and, 
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,
f) it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or screen 
planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the wider 
environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases agreements will be 
required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an early stage of development 
and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for long term landscape/open space 
maintenance,
g) it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces.

Placemaking & Design
h) It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the 
context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need not 
exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,
i) it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and, where an 
extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,
j) it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the 
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the 
existing building,
k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area, neighbouring 
uses, and neighbouring built form,
l) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,
m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the 
development that will help integration with its surroundings,
n) it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in accordance 
with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Page 311



Accessibility 
o) Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street 
patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to 
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths,
p) it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,
q) it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the site 
access,
r) it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport connections 
and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where possible to the existing 
path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support more sustainable travel patterns,
s) it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used for 
waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity
t) It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open spaces 
and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation of an up-to-
date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a developer contribution to 
wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be appropriate, supported by appropriate 
arrangements for maintenance,
u) it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or 
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and 
landscape plans as appropriate.

Policy HD3 – Protection of Residential Amenity

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or 
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of 
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that 
would be lost; and
b) the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
(i) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area,
(ii) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties 
particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These 
considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’ development, 
(iii) the generation of traffic or noise,
(iv) the level of visual impact.

Policy EP9: Conservation Areas

The Council will support development proposals within or adjacent to a Conservation Area 
which are located and designed to preserve or enhance the special architectural or historic 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area.  This should accord with the scale, 
proportions, alignment, density, materials, and boundary treatment of nearby buildings, open 
spaces, vistas, gardens and landscapes.

The Council may require applications for full, as opposed to Planning Permission in Principle 
Consent.  

Conservation Area Consent, which is required for the demolition of an unlisted building 
within a Conservation Area, will only be considered in the context of appropriate proposals 
for redevelopment and will only be permitted where:

Page 312



a) the building is incapable  of reasonably beneficial  use by virtue of its location, 
physical form or state of disrepair, and
b) the structural condition of the building is such that it can not be adapted to 
accommodate alterations or extensions without material loss to its character, and
c) the proposal will preserve or enhance the Conservation Area, either individually or as 
part of the townscape.

In cases a) to c) above, demolition will not be permitted to proceed until acceptable 
alternative treatment of the site has been approved and a contract for the replacement 
building or for an alternative means of treating the cleared site has been agreed. 

Design Statements will be required for all applications for alterations, extensions, or for 
demolition and replacement which should explain and illustrate the design principles and 
design concepts of the proposals.

Other Material Considerations
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Replacement Windows and Doors 2015
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking and Design 2010
Scottish Historic Environment Policy 2011
Managing Change in the Historic Environment Guidance Note : Windows (Historic Scotland)
Scottish Planning Policy

Page 313



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4a Decision Notice
	4b Notice of Review
	4c Officer's Report
	4d Consultations
	4e Objections and concern
	4f Support comment
	4g 4(g) List of Policies
	5a Notice of Review
	5b Officer's report
	5c Consultations
	5d List of policies
	6a Decision Notice
	6b Notice of Review
	6c Officer's report
	6d Drawings
	6e List of policies

